AMDG

SECULAR ORDER OF DISCALCED CARMELITES





Newsletter

Number 295, September 2023

Carmel OCDS Community Meeting Sunday 3 September 2023

12:00pm Formation Groups

1pm Community Meeting

Welcome & opening prayers
Roll call & apologies
Minutes of previous meeting
Treasurer's report, Correspondence
General business, General discussion
Closing prayers

1:45pm Community Formation

St Thérèse of Lisieux: "Story of a Soul" (Community Study: See Newsletter, pp.2-3)

2:30pm Father's Teaching

Divine Office in Chapel

Leader: Christine, Reader: Claire

Afternoon Tea

<u>Prep. & Serving</u>: Pat C. & Karen <u>Dishes</u>: Megan & Lyn



Bethany Day Tuesday 19 September 2023 (10:30am – 1:00pm) 10:30am Morning Tea 11:00am DVD

11:45am Chapel – Quiet Prayer 12:15pm BYO Lunch

<u>Birthdays</u>

Rosaline

Saturday 30 Sep.

NZ OCDS Website: www.carmel.org.nz

September: Dedicated to Our Lady of Sorrows

Dear brothers and sisters in Carmel.

Recently you will have received by email a letter from **Fr Miguel**, our Superior General, drawing attention to the twentieth anniversary of OCDS Constitutions. Below are excerpts from his letter:

- "...A charism of a religious family isn't defined or worn out by their founders, it rather grows in richness and continuous updating thru the experience of new sons and daughters...
- ...You, secular Carmelites of all the world, are for me living witnesses of this charism...
- ...Twenty years ago, on June 16th 2003, the Congregation for the Institutes of Consecrated Life and Societies of Apostolic Life (now a Dicastery)... declared: 'May the new text of the **Constitutions of the Secular Order of the Discalced Carmelites** be a really effective means, so that its members can reinvigorate more and more their baptismal consecration...' Thru this decree, our Holy Mother the Church expressed that the vocation of the Secular Carmelite is truly a path towards sanctity..."

I'd like to share with you my thoughts on reinvigorating the call to Secular Carmel:

- 1. Do I have sufficient comprehensive knowledge and understanding of our Constitutions to enable me to fully live my Secular Carmel vocation?
- 2. The Statutes, drawn from the Constitutions: How faithful am I in living out the demands of our Charism as Secular Carmelites?
- 3. Renewal of promise at Easter:

How faithful am I in promising to be obedient and faithful to the Constitutions of our Order of Our Lady of Mount Carmel and St Teresa, especially when it becomes difficult?

For me it has been salutary and enlightening.

In prayer,
Mary O'Boyle, OCDS
(President, Peace of Christ
Community, Christchurch)
P.S. I didn't do too badly on the
6 M's!



September quote from St Amadeus of Lausanne:

"Whoever you are who love the Mother of God, take note and reflect with all your innermost feelings upon her who wept for the Only Begotten as He died...The grief she felt in the Passion of her son goes beyond all understanding."







READING OF THE WRITINGS OF THÉRÈSE OF THE CHILD JESUS (2023: MANUSCRIPT A) Study guide 8: The Offering to Merciful Love (Ms A, 83v-84v)

Proposal for the Community meeting:

- 1. Reading of the text.
- 2. One of the participants, who has already prepared his contribution, presents the text with the help of the reading schedule (and other supports, if necessary).
- Community dialogue on the text.
 It would be good if the community meeting was preceded by a personal reading and meditation on the text of Thérèse.

MANUSCRIPT A, 83v-84v [ICS pp. 180-182]

O my dear Mother! after so many graces can I not sing with the Psalmist: "How GOOD is the Lord, his MERCY endures forever!" It seems to me that if all creatures had received the same graces I received, God would be feared by none but would be loved to the point of folly; and through love, not through fear, no one would ever consent to cause Him any pain. I understand, however, that all souls cannot be the same, that it is necessary there be different types in order to honour each of God's perfections in a particular way. To me He has granted His infinite Mercy, and through it I contemplate and adore the other divine perfections! All of these perfections appear to be resplendent with love; even His Justice (and perhaps this even more so than the others) seems to me clothed in love. What a sweet joy it is to think that God is Just, i.e., that He takes into account our weakness, that He is perfectly aware of our fragile nature. What should I fear then? Ah! must not the infinitely just God, who deigns [84r°] to pardon the faults of the prodigal son with so much kindness, be just also toward me who "am with Him always"?

This year, June 9, the feast of the Holy Trinity, I received the grace to understand more than ever before how much Jesus desires to be loved.

I was thinking about the souls who offer themselves as victims of God's Justice in order to turn away the punishments reserved to sinners, drawing them upon themselves. This offering seemed great and very generous to me, but I was far from feeling attracted to making it. From the depths of my heart, I cried out:

"O my God! Will Your Justice alone find souls willing to immolate themselves as victims? Does not Your **Merciful Love** need them too? On every side this love is unknown, rejected; those hearts upon whom You would lavish it, turn to creatures, seeking happiness from them with their miserable affection; they do this instead of throwing themselves into Your arms and of accepting Your infinite **Love**. O my God! Is Your disdained Love going to remain closed up within Your Heart? It seems to me that if You were to find souls offering themselves as victims of holocaust to Your Love, You would consume them rapidly; it seems to me, too, that You would be happy not to hold back the waves of infinite tenderness within You. If Your Justice loves to release itself, this Justice which extends only over the earth, how much more does Your Merciful Love desire to set souls on fire since Your Mercy reaches to the heavens. O my Jesus, let me be this happy victim; consume Your holocaust with the fire of Your Divine Love!"

You permitted me, dear Mother, to offer myself in this way to God, and you know the rivers or rather the oceans of graces that flooded my soul. Ah! since the happy day, it seems to me that *Love* penetrates and surrounds me, that at each moment this *Merciful Love* renews me, purifying my soul and leaving no trace of sin within it, and [84v°] I need have no fear of purgatory. I know that of myself I would not merit even to enter that place of expiation since only holy souls can have entrance there, but I also know that the Fire of Love is more sanctifying than is the fire of purgatory. I know that Jesus cannot desire useless sufferings for us, and that He would not inspire the longings I feel unless He wanted to grant them.

Oh! how sweet is the way of Love! How I want to apply myself to doing the will of God always with the greatest self-surrender!

Here, dear Mother, is all I can tell you about the life of your little Thérèse; you know better than I do what she is and what Jesus has done for her. You will forgive me for having abridged my religious life so much.

How will this "story of a little white flower" come to an end? Perhaps the little flower will be plucked in her youthful freshness or else transplanted to other shores. I don't know, but what I am certain about is that God's Mercy will accompany her always, that it will never cease blessing the dear Mother who offered her to Jesus; she will rejoice eternally at being one of the flowers of her crown. And with this dear Mother she will sing eternally the new canticle of Love.

Introduction to the text:

We arrive with this last text at the end of Manuscript A; it is a text profoundly marked by the Act of Offering, which we invite you to reread. Following the Act of Offering to Merciful Love, Thérèse is flooded with streams of divine love. This is the time of maturity and self-sacrifice. Thérèse's being is unified. Her whole life revolves around the love of Jesus and the service of his mission.

"This year, June 9" (Ms A, 84r): Thérèse pronounced her "Act of Offering to Merciful Love" (Prayer 6). Thérèse offered herself to Merciful Love on June 9, 1895, during Mass. While at that time pious souls offered themselves to "divine justice", Thérèse revolutionized the offering: what God wanted to pour out on earth was not vengeful justice, but the waves of his merciful Love. Thérèse would affirm several times that justice itself seemed to her to be "clothed in love". Love must have the last word and it is at the level of love that the restoration of justice must take place. So let us go immediately to him, let us take the direct path, let us surrender ourselves to love.

"How will this 'story of a little white flower' come to an end" (Ms A, 84v): before the frightening trials of 1896 and the last year 1897, 1895 was a wonderful stage in Thérèse's life, a year of spiritual fullness in which she writes Manuscript A, writes three Recreations (Plays 3, 4 and 5) and composes ten Poems (Poetry 16 to 25), including "Living on Love" and "To the Sacred Heart of Jesus", she welcomed her cousin Marie Guérin (Sister Marie of the Eucharist) to Carmel and became godmother to her first spiritual brother, Fr Bellière.

"Or else transplanted to other shores" (Ms A, 84v): Thérèse began very early to think about leaving for the Carmel of Saigon (now Ho Chi Minh City), founded by Lisieux in 1861. Now, at the time Thérèse was writing, she was rather oriented toward the Carmel of Hanoi, which had just been founded in 1895.

"She will sing eternally the new canticle of Love" (Ms A, 84v): here we can quote from the Living Flame of Saint John of the Cross: "In the state of life so perfect, the soul always walks in festivity, inwardly and outwardly, and it frequently bears on its spiritual tongue a new song in great jubilation in God, a song always new, enfolded in a gladness and love arising from the knowledge the soul has of its happy state" (Living Flame S 2:36).

For the community dialogue:

- 1. What does the text say? Understanding the content and primary meaning of Thérèse's text.
- 2. What does the text say to us today? Grasping the relevance (social, ecclesial, spiritual...) of the text.
- 3. What does the text say to me / us? Making relevant and applying the text to personal and community life.

The objective of this itinerary is to allow Thérèse to speak to us, interrogate us, encourage us, and welcome her to shed light upon and confirm our personal and community journey.

The proposed questions are therefore only indicative and may eventually accompany personal meditation and community exchange.

Questions:

- We can reread text 1 and note the reality that embraces the whole of Manuscript A: divine mercy in Thérèse's life. How do these texts seem complementary to us?
- 2. How can we make explicit the fruits of her evolution, in her relationship with herself, in her relationship with God? And for us, what would allow the true liberation of our own selves?
- 3. While Thérèse now experienced that divine mercy always accompanied her, what experience became for her the place of permanent welcome and consented to by divine power? What experience do we have of divine mercy?

In conclusion: Thérèse ends by evoking the fruits of her Offering to Merciful Love. This prayer is the expression of Thérèse's entire evolution. You are invited to reread it (Prayer 6) and to pray it together at the end of this first year of the journey.



"I wish to give all to Jesus, since He has shown me that He alone is perfect happiness." (St Thérèse)

Prayers for September

Thank-you, Lord, for all the blessings you give us each day.

We pray for:

- Our Holy Father, Pope Francis, Archbishop Paul, SM, Bishop Michael, all our priests, religious and seminarians, and the welfare of our diocese
- Our Provincial, Fr Jim Noonan, OCD, our General, Fr Miguel Márquez Calle, OCD and all our Carmel family, especially our Carmelite Sisters. Also, vocations to Carmel and to our own Peace of Christ Community (Please offer a decade of the rosary daily for this, as requested by Bishop Greg Homeming, OCD.)

Special Intentions:

- Our Ukrainian Carmelite nuns, friars & seculars, and all the people of Ukraine, suffering from the terrors of war
- Our Carmelite nuns in Aleppo, and all those suffering from the recent earthquake in Syria and Turkey
- Our dear Carmelite Sisters, especially Sr Teresa of Jesus, Sr Elizabeth and Sr Dorothea
- Bishop-elect John Adams and his ordination on 30 Sep.
- Fr Jérôme, OCD and our Goma mission
- Fr Michael-Thérèse, Fr Antoine and CSJ
- Fr Philip, CSJ and the University Chaplaincy Team
- Our Special Members, especially Dorothea, Stephanie, Rosaline and Peb
- John Paul II Centre for Life and prayers for life
- Those who have died recently, especially Noeline's niece (from cancer) and the consolation of her family
- Those who have asked for, or need our prayers, especially Fr Arsène, Fr Deeney, OCD, Gay (tests in hospital), David Williams and Kelly Hutton (terminally ill), Megan's new role at JP2, the upcoming elections

Our Holy Father's Intentions for September:

 We pray for those persons living on the margins of society, in inhumane life conditions; may they not be overlooked by institutions and never considered of lesser importance.

OUR MISSIONS PROJECT

To help Fr Jérôme, OCD in assisting the displaced children in Goma, due to terrorism





Displaced people and children living in makeshift shelters

Our September Carmelite Saints

1 Fri. St Teresa Margaret (Redi) of the Sacred Heart (virgin)

11 Mon. Bl. Mary of Jesus (virgin)17 Sun. St Albert of Jerusalem

(bishop and lawgiver of Carmel)



To ask nothing
to seek nothing
but the will of God,
accepting all things
from His hand
with equal
gratitude and love."

-St. Teresa Margaret Redi

-St. Teresa Margaret Rec Carmelite

hfacts Cornel
heart.of.prelature@gmail.com

CARMEL RETREAT

"Advent with Carmel"
Retreat Director: Fr Michael-Thérèse Scheerger, CSJ

November 24th - 26th 2023

Rochester Hall, Canterbury University, Ilam Live in cost \$240 Day only \$120

OCDS CONSTITUTIONS

II. Following Jesus in the Teresian Secular Carmel
The commitment to the promise to live the spirit
of the evangelical counsel of chastity

13. The promise of chastity reinforces the commitment to love God above all else, and to love others with the love God has for them. In this promise the Secular Carmelite seeks the freedom to love God and neighbour unselfishly, giving witness to the divine intimacy promised by the beatitude "blessed are the pure of heart for they shall see God" (Mt 5:8). The promise of chastity is a commitment to Christian love in its personal and social dimensions in order to create authentic community in the world. By this promise the Secular Carmelite also expresses the conscious desire to respect each person as required by God's law and one's state of life, as a single person or married or widowed. This promise does not prevent a change in state of life.

The Seal of Carmel: "Zelo zelatus sum pro Domino Deo exercituum"

"With zeal have I been zealous for the Lord God of hosts"